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          1  COMMITTEE ON VETERANS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Convening the

          3  Hearing on the Committee on Veterans.  First, before

          4  I go any further, I have the privilege of Chairing

          5  this Committee, and I want to introduce some of the

          6  Committee Members that are here today present.  All

          7  the way to the left is Councilman Lou Fidler from

          8  Brooklyn, Councilman Nelson, also from Brooklyn, and

          9  Councilman Tony Avella from the great borough of

         10  Queens.  When you guys get a real baseball team,

         11  then you can come back and talk, okay?  We love

         12  Brooklyn too.

         13                 Today the Committee will be holding a

         14  general oversight Hearing on the Mayor's Office of

         15  Veterans' Affairs also known as MOVA.  MOVA was

         16  established in 1987 to advise the Mayor on issues

         17  and projects impacting on the Veterans community.

         18  MOVA derives its authority from the New York City

         19  Charter and has a duty to assist the Armed Forces

         20  and its veterans.  Currently, MOVA has a total

         21  operating budget of approximately $208,000 and four

         22  full- time employees.

         23                 The Committee on Veterans held its

         24  last oversight Hearing on MOVA in January of 2005.

         25  At that Hearing critics of MOVA questioned whether
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          2  MOVA could handle the demands of serving New York

          3  City veterans, especially during a time of war.

          4  More recently, the Veterans Community's concern with

          5  the recent move of MOVA from 346 Broadway here in

          6  Manhattan to 100 Gold street.  I understand that

          7  that might not be entirely correct, so we're going

          8  to be hearing very shortly from the Director at

          9  MOVA.

         10                 Critics have argued that MOVA's moved

         11  office could have a negative impact on veterans

         12  organizations located at 346 Broadway.  Today we

         13  hope to hear the reasons for the move and any other

         14  plans that MOVA has.

         15                 We're going to now take this

         16  opportunity to invite Clarice Joynes, the Executive

         17  Director of MOVA to testify.  We'll be expecting to

         18  hear from other veterans advocate support groups and

         19  military veterans alike.  So please join us.  Please

         20  begin.

         21                 MS. JOYNES:  Okay, we'll start again.

         22    Is that better?  Good afternoon, Council Member

         23  Monserrate and Members of the New York City Council

         24  on Veterans' issues.  My name is Clarice Joynes, and

         25  I am the Executive Director of the Mayor's Office of
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          2  Veterans' Affairs.

          3                 I am here to address an issue that

          4  has caused great confusion:  The location of the

          5  Mayor's Office of Veterans' Affairs.  Earlier this

          6  year, it was decided that MOVA would, in addition to

          7  having a presence at Veterans' Memorial Hall at 346

          8  Broadway, also have a satellite office at 100 Gold

          9  Street, where many of the Administration's

         10  constituency offices are located. Indeed, because

         11  the Administration is always looking for ways to

         12  improve the delivery of services to the veterans and

         13  military community of New York City, establishing a

         14  satellite work space at 100 Gold Street enables MOVA

         15  to further enhance our delivery of services through

         16  coordination with partner offices, including the

         17  Community Assistance Unit, the Office for People

         18  with Disabilities, the Office of Immigrant Affairs,

         19  and the Voter Assistance Commission.

         20                 MOVA has worked in the past, and

         21  continues to work closely with these offices to best

         22  assist constituents.  The addition of our presence

         23  at 100 Gold Street fosters a greater relationship

         24  among these various offices, working collectively to

         25  enhance the delivery of services to the residents of
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          2  the City of New York.

          3            Allow me to take full responsibility for

          4  any miscommunication or misunderstanding regarding

          5  the recent changes for our office, none of which

          6  have disrupted the delivery of services to the

          7  veterans' community, nor their ability to contact

          8  our office.  Communications remain the same for

          9  MOVA.  Our phone number has not changed.  E- mail

         10  addresses remain the same, and any constituent can

         11  still reach the office through the Mayor's 311

         12  system.

         13            It was never the Administration's intent

         14  to move the Mayor's Office of Veterans' Affairs out

         15  of Veteran's Memorial Hall, but rather to maximize

         16  resources and services, while enhancing

         17  communications and ties with the veterans

         18  organizations.  MOVA will maintain a full- time

         19  presence at Veteran's Memorial Hall, where, for

         20  nearly two decades, it has been with its partner

         21  organizations who directly serve the veterans

         22  community, and where it has received members of the

         23  community in need of assistance, and provided them

         24  with a consistent level of service.

         25                 Moreover, our space at 346 Broadway
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          2  will be converted to a bullpen setting similar to

          3  the way the Mayor and his executive staff have their

          4  offices in City Hall, as well as the way our partner

          5  office at 100 Gold Street have their offices.  To be

          6  clear, individual staff will be detailed to work at

          7  our satellite office at 100 Gold Street, as

          8  appropriate, to collaborate on those issues

          9  affecting the veterans and the military community

         10  that should be addressed in consultation with our

         11  partners there.

         12                 Indeed, MOVA recognizes the need to

         13  ensure strong ties to the current veterans

         14  organizations housed at Veteran's Memorial Hall,

         15  while also encouraging organizations that represent

         16  our most recent veterans -- those who have served

         17  and who are serving in Operation Enduring Freedom,

         18  Operation Iraqi Freedom, to establish a presence of

         19  their own at Veteran's Memorial Hall.  As has always

         20  been the case, MOVA continues to welcome input from

         21  the veterans community and its many organizations,

         22  as well as from this Council Committee with respect

         23  to maximizing the productivity of the Hall and

         24  enhancing the delivery of services to veterans.

         25                 To that end, we look forward to
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          2  developing and implementing a plan to make Veteran's

          3  Memorial Hall ready to meet the clear challenges of

          4  the future.

          5                 Let me make clear, the Administration

          6  takes seriously the service and sacrifices of the

          7  City's veterans, military service members, and their

          8  families, and we will continue to advocate on their

          9  behalf.

         10                 Thank you for allowing me to give

         11  this testimony before the Council Committee on

         12  Veterans Issues, and I will now take your questions.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you

         14  very much.  I'm going to give the opportunity to the

         15  members of the Committee to ask their questions.

         16  First, Council Member Avella.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  I have so

         18  many I actually don't know where to start today.

         19  First thing is, am I correct, Mr. Chair that this is

         20  supposed to be an oversight meeting on how MOVA

         21  operates?  I don't see anything in your testimony

         22  about how MOVA operates.  I mean it's basically a

         23  little description of the move, which we'll get

         24  into.  But where's information on your budget?  Are

         25  you planning to increase the budget because we've
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          2  been raising this issue for years now?  How many

          3  services do you provide to veterans? How many

          4  veterans have you actually served?  I would think

          5  that would be the type of information you'd be

          6  presenting to the Committee. Your statement

          7  basically is a little puff piece, but it doesn't

          8  address anything.

          9                 MS. JOYNES:  Let me answer that

         10  question for you, Council Member.  We received

         11  notice from the Council on what we'll be discussing

         12  today.  It just said oversight of the Mayor's Office

         13  of Veterans' Affairs, and we have been in contact

         14  with the Chair's office on what was going to be up

         15  with discussion.  In the discussions that we had

         16  with staff members, we didn't get the fact that you

         17  wanted to speak about the Mayor's Office of

         18  Veterans' Affairs budget.  So we were told that we

         19  were going to be discussing the move of MOVA from

         20  346 Broadway to 100 Gold Street, and we could

         21  definitely get those questions answered for you and

         22  address those issues.

         23                 But just to make clear, we have a

         24  staff that addresses all of the issues for the

         25  veterans in the City of New York.  We continue to
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          2  address those issues.  Anybody in the City of New

          3  York who calls our office, comes to our office, e-

          4  mails our office, sends a letter, they get their

          5  issues addressed.  We remain in constant contact

          6  with the veterans of New York City.

          7                 There are approximately, according to

          8  the last VA count over, 400,000 veterans in the City

          9  of New York.  We estimate that that number is higher

         10  because we have 8.2 million residents of the City of

         11  New York, and, unfortunately, not every veteran in

         12  the City of New York goes to the VA for services.

         13  So their numbers are not always counted in the VA

         14  numbers, but we do serve that population.  We take

         15  it very seriously.  We stay in contact with the U.S.

         16  Department of Veterans' Affairs, the State Division

         17  of Veterans' Affairs, all City Agencies, community-

         18  based organizations.  We work with them to enhance

         19  and give services to the veterans of New York City.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  How many

         21  clients have you served in the past year?

         22                 MS. JOYNES:  In the past year?  Well,

         23  approximately we serve over 300 or 400 clients a

         24  month, and that's with walk- ins, telephone calls,

         25  e- mails and correspondence.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  And you do

          3  that with four staff?

          4                 MS. JOYNES:  Yes, we do.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Now, let's go

          6  to the move for a second.  So now you have your main

          7  office, and you have a satellite office based upon

          8  your testimony.  So where does the four staff go?

          9                 MS. JOYNES:  We work with both

         10  offices, so we have four people that will be address

         11   -- our main office will be at 346 Broadway, and

         12  we'll have a satellite at 100 Gold Street.  So when

         13  we have need to meet with a constituency offices at

         14  100 Gold Street, we will go there.  Not all four

         15  staff members because we will always maintain

         16  someone at 346 Broadway.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Now I'm even

         18  more confused than I was before.  So you have four

         19  staff people?

         20                 MS. JOYNES:  Correct.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  They're all

         22  at the main office, but sometimes they're going to

         23  go to the satellite office?

         24                 MS. JOYNES:  Sometimes one or two of

         25  them may go to the satellite office depending on the
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          2  needs of the constituency offices of the Mayor's

          3  office at 100 Gold Street.  If we have to go there

          4  for meetings or to meet on a specific topic or have

          5  a meeting for another issue.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  I honestly

          7  don't get that.

          8                 MS. JOYNES:  Well, we have four --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  What would be

         10  the purpose of having a satellite office then?

         11                 MS. JOYNES:  The purpose is to make

         12  sure we remain in contact with the constituency

         13  offices that serve the rest of New York City.  We

         14  have, like I addressed in my testimony --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  You ever hear

         16  of the phone?

         17                 MS. JOYNES:  Excuse me?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Have you

         19  heard of a phone? That's how we deal with the other

         20  City agencies.  I don't get the logic here.  I'm

         21  missing something.  I mean, if you could tell me

         22  what the logic is to have this satellite office.

         23                 MS. JOYNES:  The logic is, we have a

         24  community assistance unit.  We also have

         25  constituency offices like I addressed in my
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          2  testimony.  They address issues with disability,

          3  immigrant affairs, voter assistance and the like.

          4  If we have to have someone there to meet with those

          5  offices, we can send a staff member to that office

          6  to meet with them, and, yes, we do have telephones,

          7  we have e- mail.  We find that the bullpen situation

          8  works very well for the Mayor and his executive

          9  staff.  It works very well with our Community

         10  Assistance office, and we want to be able to bring

         11  the Veteran's Affairs offices into that type of

         12  situation because it enhances the services to the

         13  veterans.  346 Broadway still will be the main

         14  headquarters of MOVA, and that's where the majority

         15  of the four members of our staff will be, and if we

         16  have to take two members and put them in 100 Gold

         17  Street, they'll be there for -- they're not there

         18  constantly.  They're there as the need arises.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Well, when do

         20  you determine that the two staffers go to the other

         21  location, and where should a veteran seeking

         22  assistance then go to?  What happens if they go to

         23  the main office, and you got the two other staffers

         24  there?  Suppose somebody's out sick.  I don't really

         25  get this.
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          2                 MS. JOYNES:  None of the offices will

          3  be unstaffed. There will always be someone at both

          4  offices that will be able to be served.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  So it goes

          6  back to -- I think my first question was, how do you

          7  divide the four staff people up then?  If the

          8  satellite office is going to be continually staffed,

          9  is it one, is it two?

         10                 MS. JOYNES:  That remains on the

         11  needs.  That's something that I cannot address right

         12  now because we don't know exactly what the needs are

         13  going to be for the Constituency Affairs Offices at

         14  the time.  The main office will be at 346 Broadway.

         15  Our phone numbers are still the same.  They haven't

         16  changed.  If any veteran needs to get services, if

         17  they are a walk- in, whether they go to 100 Gold

         18  Street or 346 Broadway, they will be seen and taken

         19  care of.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Maybe it's

         21  me, but I still don't get it.  What made you come up

         22  with this decision, to have this satellite office

         23  then?

         24                 MS. JOYNES:  Again, as I stated in my

         25  testimony earlier, we were looking for addressing
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          2  the needs of putting MOVA with the other

          3  constituency offices. So that was the whole goal is

          4  trying to pull the veterans community into the

          5  community --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  So if that's

          7  the case then, are you going to have all veterans

          8  report the Gold Street Office?

          9                 MS. JOYNES:  They will be reporting

         10  mainly to 346 Broadway.  That is the headquarters of

         11  the Mayor's Office of Veterans' Affairs, so if they

         12  have any needs, they should go to 346 Broadway.  If

         13  somebody still goes to 100 Gold Street, they will be

         14  taken care of at that office.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  I gotta tell

         16  you this makes no sense to me, absolutely no sense.

         17  Why you came up with this satellite office and why

         18  you're going have one or two staff people there when

         19  you still have a presence at the main office, and

         20  you're still asking veterans to go to that main

         21  office, I don't know why anybody would go to the

         22  satellite office.  I mean, certainly now you're

         23  really confusing the situation.

         24                 MS. JOYNES:  The main --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  No, let me
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          2  finish, let me finish.  The other part of it is, you

          3  don't have enough staff people to handle all the

          4  veterans in this City with four.  To split it up now

          5  is even more ridiculous.  It's almost like we're

          6  playing with the numbers, or we're going to say we

          7  have a satellite office to make it look to the

          8  outside world that you're actually doing more.  To

          9  me this is actually doing less because you're only

         10  confusing veterans, and you're splitting up your

         11  limited resources to have people at another office,

         12  which the veterans aren't really supposed to go to.

         13  So I don't get it.  So far I have not heard an

         14  explanation.  I don't think you have one, to be

         15  perfectly honest.

         16                 MS. JOYNES:  Well, that's your

         17  opinion, Council Member, but just, again, let me

         18  reiterate.  With the staff members that we have had,

         19  the Mayor's Office of Veterans' Affairs has been

         20  operating for 20 years come August of this year, and

         21  with the increased need of the office, we have

         22  addressed those needs of the veterans of New York

         23  City.  Anybody who contacts our office whether they

         24  walk into our office, give us a phone call, send us

         25  a letter that's looking for assistance, they have
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          2  never been turned away for services.  We've always

          3  addressed the needs of the veterans that contact our

          4  office.  So we will continue to do so.  We take very

          5  seriously the needs of the veterans of the City of

          6  New York.  They contact our office.  They will

          7  always have their needs addressed.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  So you're

          9  saying that four people can handle everything, has

         10  handled everything, and you don't need anymore staff

         11  and everything is fine?

         12                 MS. JOYNES:  Currently, the way the

         13  situation works, we are working very well with our

         14  follow agencies, with federal.  We don't do this

         15  alone.  That's the one thing you have never heard me

         16  come before this Committee and say that we address

         17  the needs of the veterans of New York City on our

         18  own.  Because unfortunately, or fortunately

         19  depending on how you look at it, the needs of

         20  individual veterans are germane to that individual.

         21  So if they are looking for assistance with their

         22  benefits that are addressed by the Federal

         23  Government, we work very closely with the Federal

         24  Government to make sure those needs and those

         25  benefits are met through working with that agency.
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          2  If it's coming from the state, the same thing.  If

          3  they have to get their needs addressed by a City

          4  Agency, we do that as well.  It depends on the

          5  veteran who walks into our office to get their needs

          6  met.  We do not foster or give out the benefits for

          7  the Federal Government, but we do work closely with

          8  the team leaders and the team workers at the Federal

          9  Government to address those needs.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you.

         11  I have a couple of questions, so I'm going to

         12  interject here for a minute.  The Gold Street

         13  location, exactly where is it?  It is in Manhattan,

         14  is it not?

         15                 MS. JOYNES:  Yes, 100 Gold Street is

         16  here in Manhattan.  It's right near the Brooklyn

         17  Bridge, right, correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  So I just

         19  want to follow- up on my colleague's questioning

         20  because if you're going to open up a satellite

         21  office because you wanted to provide more services,

         22  then I would presume that perhaps that satellite

         23  office might have been opened in one of the other

         24  boroughs, so that we can make is a little bit more

         25  accessible geographically, whether it's in Brooklyn
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          2  or Queens or the Bronx, wherever it might be.  I

          3  think that the sentiment of my colleagues here in

          4  the Committee and the veterans that I've spoken to

          5  is that it doesn't seem too logical to have a

          6  satellite office literally a couple of blocks away

          7  from the main office.  So I think that that's what

          8  you're hearing from my colleagues, and that's what

          9  we've heard, so how would you respond to that?

         10                 MS. JOYNES:  Well, right now like

         11  I've said, and I'll say it again, the main

         12  headquarters of MOVA is at 346 Broadway.  Just like

         13  we made the decision to have a satellite office at

         14  100 Gold Street, if we find in the near future that

         15  it really doesn't work either for ourselves, you

         16  know for the needs of the Mayor's Office, and

         17  doesn't address the needs or work for the veterans

         18  community, then changes will be made again.  We're

         19  continually making changes and accessing how we

         20  deliver services to the veterans community.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  I understand

         22  that.  You've been very clear about that, and I

         23  respect your position and what you're stating, but

         24  we still come back -- I'm still trying to

         25  rationalize what was the need for the satellite
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          2  office a few blocks away?  I'm trying to

          3  rationalize.  Like did you need more file space?

          4  Did you need more space to put up phones?

          5                 MS. JOYNES:  No, it wasn't for

          6  logistical purposes when it comes to files or

          7  phones.  The Mayor's, all of the Mayor's

          8  constituency offices and all of the Mayor's offices

          9  are located at 100 Gold Street on the second floor.

         10  The thought was to pull the Mayor's Office of

         11  Veterans' Affairs into that group where the

         12  constituency offices are and the community

         13  assistance offices are. We have at 100 Gold Street

         14  the community assistance unit has representatives

         15  for all five boroughs in their offices there.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  How much

         17  room do you have over there at Gold Street?

         18                 MS. JOYNES:  The Mayor's office

         19  occupies the whole second floor, and we have four

         20  cubicles over there at 100 Gold Street because

         21  everybody is in a cubicle setting.  It's a whole

         22  bullpen area there, just like it is here at City

         23  Hall.  The Mayor's headquarters, if you've ever been

         24  in the Mayor's headquarters there, it's the same

         25  setup there as it is in here.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  I guess I

          3  can't -- I'm still not at a place where I'm

          4  understanding.  I'd like to be able to understand. I

          5  just don't know exactly how much sense that move

          6  made.  You have a staff of four, including yourself,

          7  right, so it's you plus three?

          8                 MS. JOYNES:  Correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  So it's four

         10  total staff that staff out this agency.  Then you

         11  open up a satellite office a few blocks away, and I

         12  don't know.  I'm just going to allow my colleagues

         13  to ask.  Council Member Nelson.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you.

         15  Clarice I respect you, you're a veteran, and you're

         16  caring.  I know you really want to do as much as you

         17  can do to help the veterans.  I think you're short

         18  changed though.  I think it's $207,726 dollars, I

         19  think.  It doesn't appear enough to help all of our

         20  veterans overall.

         21                 You did say you took responsibility

         22  for the move, but could the, in the lack of the

         23  confusion, could the Administration at any time jump

         24  in and give you perhaps more money for postage, for

         25  the mailing to send to all the veterans to say, you

                                                            22

          1  COMMITTEE ON VETERANS

          2  know we appreciate your service, and, by the way,

          3  you can find us at this location, because it seemed

          4  to have caused a problem, and it has the appearance,

          5  I know, perhaps, of a lack of respect, not from you,

          6  not enough money in your agency.  I think that

          7  ruffled a lot of feathers.  I don't know what it

          8  would cost, probably about $150,000, or something

          9  like that, but I think the City should have come up

         10  with the money.  Are we still sending letters to

         11  veterans when they come back to New York?

         12                 MS. JOYNES:  Well, actually those

         13  letters, yes. They come from the U.S. Department of

         14  Veterans Affairs.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay.

         16                 MS. JOYNES:  When an OEF vet or a OIF

         17  vet comes back home to New York City, they do get a

         18  letter from the VA saying that they should go report

         19  for a health care screening and letting them know

         20  where their local VA is.  So that's something that

         21   --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Because we

         23  appreciate your service and --

         24                 MS. JOYNES:  Correct.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay.
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          2  Because I received one when, in 70 I think it was,

          3  1970 when I came back, and that little touch I

          4  appreciated.  I said, Wow, somebody actually cares

          5  in this state.  So I think it's important.  I think

          6  that you just need more money allocated to you, for

          7  sure.  I appreciate your position where it's

          8  difficult for you publicly to ask for it, but

          9  hopefully you're doing it behind the curtain.

         10                 There was a complaint that came

         11  across by a member of a veterans association saying

         12  that MOVA wasn't well informed concerning veterans

         13  homelessness on PA issues.  I was wondering if you

         14  wanted to address that.

         15                 MS. JOYNES:  I don't know who might

         16  have addressed the Council Member with that

         17  statement, but we are very well versed with what's

         18  happening with the homeless situation.  One of the

         19  things we do is we work very closely with the

         20  Department of Homeless Services and the U.S.

         21  Department of Veterans Affairs when it comes to the

         22  issues of homeless veterans.

         23                 One of the things that we are working

         24  on with both agencies is to try to tackle finding

         25  out, number one, the exact number of homeless in the
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          2  City of New York.  One of the things that we've

          3  found is at issue when working with not only just

          4  with the VA, but also with the Department of

          5  Homeless Services, is defining what someone might

          6  constitute as homelessness, and also addressing the

          7  number.  One thing that we have not stopped doing,

          8  we also and we always work with anybody we find who

          9  is homeless.  We work with them through the

         10  Department of Homeless services and through the VA

         11  system trying to address those needs.

         12                 One of the things that the Mayor had

         13  with the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs was

         14  Secretary Nicholson was an announcement at Borden

         15  Avenue Veterans Residence addressing that his task

         16   -- he tasked the Commissioner of Homeless Services

         17  to put 100 veterans in supportive or permanent

         18  housing or get them out of the shelter system within

         19  100 days.  I just spoke with Commissioner Hess, and

         20  so far they've placed 80 of those 100 veterans into

         21  permanent situations.

         22                 So it's always an ongoing issue and,

         23  unfortunately, it's a need that's constantly going

         24  to come up.  With the current war that we're going

         25  through, with the fact that we're utilizing our
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          2  Reservist and National Guard on a larger scale, the

          3  war has lasted longer than anyone has expected, we

          4  have definitely surpassed the years that World War

          5  II was going on, the needs of our service members

          6  are going to increase.  With the experience that we

          7  have working with the veterans in New York City, we

          8  know that homelessness is going to increase, so is

          9  unemployment and the healthcare issues.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay.  I'm

         11  sorry, I imagine one of my colleagues may pick up on

         12  that.  The last thing I was going to ask is that,

         13  when was the last significant outreach effort made

         14  by MOVA to contact veterans for any particular

         15  issue?

         16                 MS. JOYNES:  Right now we haven't had

         17  one in awhile. We do want to make sure we try to

         18  partner with the Federal Government, Veterans

         19  Affairs the Vet Centers, and we work with them in

         20  that regard.  In fact, I just was at an outreach

         21  with Congress Member Meeks (phonetic) just held an

         22  open forum out at St. Albans (phonetic), and I

         23  attended that one.  So we do partner with other

         24  elected officials, community based organizations on

         25  getting the word out or assisting the veterans in
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          2  New York City.

          3                 Right now we are working on and we're

          4  preparing for our second annual Fleet Week Job,

          5  Education and Information Fair. Again, we will be

          6  inviting employers, federal agencies, state

          7  agencies, city agencies and companies to come out to

          8  offer jobs and services to the veterans and military

          9  community of New York City. That will take place on

         10  the last week of May of this year.  That'll be May

         11  24th this year.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay.  Just

         13  in closing statement, I hope that you with Al

         14  Mullins (phonetic) and others who would bring back

         15  our feelings from the Council, our sentiments, that

         16  we feel you should be getting more money for your

         17  agency, or whatever, and hopefully can utilize that

         18  better to keep our veterans informed as much as

         19  you'd like to, I'm sure.  Thank you. Thank you, Mr.

         20  Chair.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I don't know,

         22  Mr. Chairman maybe it's just me, but I don't get

         23  this Hearing.  I enjoy a good bashing of the

         24  Administration as much as anybody sitting at this

         25  table, but are we really having a Hearing about the
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          2  fact that this has acquired four cubicles space in

          3  another building?

          4                 Ms. Joynes, is there any additional

          5  cost to the taxpayers as a result of this?  Have you

          6  lost any money from your agency's budget for these

          7  four cubicles?

          8                 MS. JOYNES:  No, I have not.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Could you

         10  tell me what other constituent offices are at 100

         11  Gold Street that you want to be there to partner

         12  with?

         13                 MS. JOYNES:  We have the entire

         14  Community Assistance Unit, the Mayor's Office on

         15  People with Disabilities, the Mayor's Office of

         16  Immigrant Affairs, the Mayor's Office of Domestic

         17  Violence and the Voter Assistance Commission.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Is it my

         19  understanding of your testimony that the veterans

         20  that you intend to see at 100 Gold Street are those

         21  might have joint issues with those other offices?

         22                 MS. JOYNES:  Correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  It makes

         24  sense to me.  I mean, I don't know.  Maybe it's just

         25  me, but I would rather be discussing with you what
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          2  efforts are being made by your office to develop a

          3  federal agenda, because I've always believed that

          4  the primary obligation for veteran services belongs

          5  to the Federal Government, the people who made these

          6  folks veterans to begin with. What's being done to

          7  make sure that the Federal Government is doing more

          8  for those veterans that are homeless?  What's being

          9  done to make sure that the Federal Government is

         10  doing more for those who are disabled?  What's being

         11  done as part of our City's Federal legislative

         12  agenda to make sure that VA hospitals are being

         13  properly kept open and staffed?  Does your agency

         14  play a role in that, and, if so, what are you doing

         15  on those things because those are the things that I

         16  think warrant the time of this Committee.

         17                 MS. JOYNES:  Well, just let me

         18  address those one thing at a time.  Just like I just

         19  testified, the Mayor and Secretary Nicholson just

         20  made an announcement to partner together so it's the

         21  Federal Government and the City to work on the issue

         22  of homeless veterans in New York City.

         23                 The Mayor has tasked the Department

         24  of Homeless Services and this office to work

         25  together with the U.S. Department of Veteran Affairs
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          2  to make sure that we started out with putting 100

          3  veterans, homeless veterans into permanent

          4  supportive housing in 100 days.  That announcement

          5  was on December 21, 2006 and, to date, we have 80 of

          6  those 100 veterans placed.  So that's an ongoing

          7  effort, and we constantly work with the homeless

          8  outreach workers with the U.S. Department of

          9  Veterans Affairs.

         10                 As far as with the disabled vets,

         11  again, we have a very good partnership with the U.S.

         12  Department of Veterans Affairs, and we work with the

         13  local hospitals in the area to make sure that we

         14  work with them on their needs and make sure that

         15  they're addressed.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  That wasn't

         17  really the question because, quite frankly, what I

         18  understand, and I think is a unanimous opinion

         19  around the table, is that you don't have a large

         20  enough staff to do everything in the primary case.

         21  I get a sense that the vast majority of the work

         22  that your staff does is by taking the veteran that

         23  comes in with a problem and directing them and

         24  assisting them with the proper agency to help them.

         25                 MS. JOYNES:  Correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Because you

          3  don't actually provide any benefits directly in the

          4  Office of Veterans Affairs.

          5                 MS. JOYNES:  We don't provide Federal

          6  benefits, no. We provide City benefits to local

          7  veterans in New York City area. Yes, if you look at

          8  our mission statement, we are a liaison office, and

          9  we always have been for the last 20 years.  We work

         10  together with the Federal, State community- based

         11  organizations, Federal, State agencies.  We work

         12  with everybody on a local level to address the

         13  issues of veterans in New York City, so we do not

         14  dispense federal benefits or state benefits to

         15  veterans.  The one thing we do work with is other

         16  City agencies that the benefits that we do have for

         17  veterans and for City employees who happen to be

         18  veterans.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  So even when

         20  a veteran comes in on an issue that is within the

         21  purview, directly of the City, you are working with

         22  another City agency somewhere because you're not the

         23  direct dispenser of those benefits.

         24                 MS. JOYNES:  Correct.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  So I
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          2  understand that.  The question really was beyond

          3  you're working on individual projects, but is

          4  creating, as we try to do here at the Council, an

          5  agenda with the federal government saying, we need

          6  funding for.  Now, does the Office of Veterans'

          7  Affairs participate with the Mayor's Office in

          8  developing the Mayor's agenda, Mayor's federal

          9  agenda for benefits to veterans?

         10                 MS. JOYNES:  Yes, we do.  Just to

         11  give you an example of what we have done in the

         12  recent past, we've worked with keeping the hospitals

         13  open here in New York City, the Brooklyn VA hospital

         14  and the Manhattan VA hospital.  That was a very

         15  serious issue because it was threatened to either

         16  close or consolidate one of the two hospitals.  This

         17  office did work with our federal legislative office

         18  because we have a City federal legislative office,

         19  and we worked with them to make sure those needs

         20  were addressed and that we put together an agenda.

         21  The Mayor had worked together with that office and

         22  with the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs, and we

         23  were able to successfully keep the hospitals open in

         24  the City in New York for veterans of New York City.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Those are the
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          2  kinds things that I'd like to have our dialogues

          3  about, and we don't get an oversight Hearing during

          4  the budget process on the Office of Veterans'

          5  Affairs, do we?  We do?  Well, maybe we ought too.

          6  For $200,000 dollars it would almost -- I mean, you

          7  throw around $200,000 dollars.  It's a trivial

          8  number considering how many veterans we have and the

          9  fact that the number of veterans we have is

         10  increasing, and I can only imagine that the burden

         11  of your office will increase.  The statistic you

         12  threw out that you assist 300 to 400 veterans a

         13  month with a staff of four with those of us who

         14  maintain district offices is almost unbelievable.  I

         15  guess, someone's going to come up and sit in that

         16  chair in ten minutes and say that you don't really,

         17  or whatever, but if you have a success rate of 200,

         18  that's still pretty significant for a staff of four.We're

         19  going to have more veterans in the City of New York,

         20  and we ought to have more people in your office to

         21  be able to handle those veterans and the problems

         22  that they have, and I think we need to continue to

         23  be proactive about developing a federal legislative

         24  agenda.  I'm not so concerned that you've got four,

         25  that you've decided to rearrange the management of
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          2  your physical space without cost to the taxpayers by

          3  getting an additional four cubicles in another

          4  building where you can liaison with other City

          5  agencies.  It doesn't really bother me.  I think,

          6  though, the message you should take back to the

          7  Administration is this Committee thinks that you

          8  need more staff because you're going to have more

          9  veterans to deal with.  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Council

         11  Member, Gentile.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chairman and Director Joynes, I apologize for my

         14  lateness.  I didn't get to hear your statement at

         15  the beginning, but  from what I've heard, I'm just

         16  curious, do you have a compiled list of names,

         17  addresses, of the veterans that reside in New York

         18  City?

         19                 MS. JOYNES:  Not the entire

         20  population, no, we do not.  We have on our website

         21  the ability for any veteran to voluntarily, or

         22  anybody to voluntarily sign up to get information

         23  from our office.  But it's not a public list

         24  because, again, it's individuals' phone numbers and

         25  addresses.  The one thing that we do share with
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          2  Council Members or any elected officials is the

          3  compiled list that we have of the individual

          4  veterans organizations that are in the City of New

          5  York that we have.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  So you have

          7  compiled a list of veterans groups throughout the

          8  five boroughs?

          9                 MS. JOYNES:  Correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Okay.  And

         11  that's a list that any one of us can access?

         12                 MS. JOYNES:  Yes, it's public

         13  information, and we compiled that list by going

         14  online and going through the phone books, and also,

         15  again, if the commander of an organization comes to

         16  us and gives us their information voluntarily,

         17  that's how we maintain that list.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  I'm curious,

         19  because you previously said that you partner in many

         20  ways with the Federal Government, and in another

         21  part of your testimony or in response to a question,

         22  you said that the Federal Government does contact

         23  every Veteran when they return home.  So I imagine

         24  that list exists that, as far as New York City goes,

         25  that if the Federal Government has a list of that
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          2  type, why is it that the City's office does not

          3  share or have access to a list like that?

          4                 MS. JOYNES:  If we needed to get

          5  access to that list, we could get it.  We would have

          6  to foil it from the Department of Defense.  That's

          7  how the VA gets that list.  That information, when a

          8  service member separates from duty, and they come

          9  back home, the VA gets their information from the

         10  Department of Defense, and they send out a letter

         11  letting that service member know they should report

         12  to their local VA for health services.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  But unless

         14  you foil it, you do not have access?  So you don't

         15  partner in that way then?

         16                 MS. JOYNES:  No, not in that regard.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Well, the

         18  reason I'm asking you this is because how would you

         19  feel about sending annual written correspondence to

         20  veterans in New York City telling them about the

         21  benefits they and their families might be eligible

         22  for?           MS. JOYNES:  Well, because we feel

         23  that, again, the responsibility of putting that

         24  information out, we work with each individual, the

         25  Federal Government, the State Government and the
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          2  City.  And everybody, it's always been in the past,

          3  that the Federal Government gets that information

          4  out about their benefits. Just like they don't give

          5  out information about City benefits for veterans.

          6  One of the things that we do have, and I've noted on

          7  all of the web sites that we have for the U.S.

          8  Department of Veterans Affairs, the State Division

          9  of Veterans Affairs and also from my office, is that

         10  if you go to any of those web sites, you can get

         11  information or a link to any of the agencies on web

         12  sites, and you can get information that way.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  I guess I'm

         14  suggesting though that one of the things that might

         15  appeal to veterans is seeing your office as maybe as

         16  a one- stop resource center for the different types

         17  and levels of benefits that can be.  Do you see a

         18  role either now or in the future of that type?

         19                 MS. JOYNES:  We do take care of

         20  veterans in that regard now.  We just don't do a

         21  physical mailing in that regard. But, again, if a

         22  veteran comes to our office looking for services

         23  from any of those agencies, we do make sure that

         24  they get that information.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  But if a
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          2  veteran doesn't know about --

          3                 MS. JOYNES:  It's not just snail

          4  mailed right now.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  But if a

          6  veteran doesn't know about a particular agency and

          7  wants to find out about benefits.

          8                 MS. JOYNES:  This is how the

          9  partnership has worked in the past 20 years that the

         10  offices operated, and also with the U.S. Department

         11  of Veterans Affairs:  We partner together in getting

         12  information out.  If a veteran comes home, just to

         13  give you an example of how this happens and how the

         14  success rate works for this.  Everybody has seen the

         15  news article about Corporal Germal Daniels, who was

         16  a recent returnee from Iraq.  Unfortunately, he lost

         17  a limb, and he was going through great difficulty.

         18  Unfortunately, sometimes we do get a veteran who

         19  falls through the cracks.  They may come home and

         20  not know that he can go to his local VA.  He can go

         21  to State Division to an outreach center.  He can go

         22  to the Mayor's Office of Veterans' Affairs.  If we

         23  get that information no matter whether it's a phone

         24  call, reading about a vet in the newspaper, we pick

         25  up the phone, contact that individual, get that

                                                            38

          1  COMMITTEE ON VETERANS

          2  information.  We make sure that that individual is

          3  taken care of on all levels.

          4                 And just to give you an update on

          5  Corporal Daniels, he is doing very well.  He is no

          6  longer homeless.  He has an apartment.  In fact,

          7  he's out of his wheelchair right now, and he has

          8  been fitted with a prosthesis, and he is taking care

          9  of himself, and he's re- adjusting very well.  Now,

         10  just to let you know how that came about, that was

         11  something -- you pick up the newspaper, you get a

         12  phone call, because these things happen

         13  simultaneously.  Once we got word of his difficulty,

         14  we reached out to the U.S. Department of Veterans

         15  Affairs.  We reached out to the Soldiers, Sailors,

         16  Airmans and Marines Club because we found out that's

         17  where Corporal Daniels had been staying.

         18                 So the whole thing is, once we get

         19  word that a veteran needs services, we may not have

         20  necessarily reached any of these offices, whether

         21  it's my office, the federal government or the State

         22  Division.  We make sure that veteran is taken care

         23  of.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  But I guess

         25  you make the point that unless someone comes to you,
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          2  or word gets to you, that is really the only way you

          3  make contact with a veteran.  It's not the other way

          4  around where you are reaching out to the veteran.

          5                 MS. JOYNES:  But we still reach out

          6  to veterans, the ones that we have on our current

          7  mailing list.  Like I said, we still have our

          8  website operating with that information.  Is it a

          9  perfect system?  We are always looking to upgrade,

         10  and we will definitely take under advisement the

         11  possibility of setting up a mailing to all over

         12  400,000 veterans in the City of New York.  Like I

         13  said, we're always looking for ways to improve

         14  services to the veterans of New York City.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Just in

         16  general then, how do you help re- integrate veterans

         17  into civilian life if they present themselves with

         18  PTSD or have financial problems, what is it that you

         19  do in those regards?

         20                 MS. JOYNES:  If we have a veteran

         21  that comes to us, and they show signs of having

         22  post- traumatic stress, we make sure that they go to

         23  the VA hospital.  We have three of them here in the

         24  New York City area.  We have the Bronx VA up on

         25  Kingsbridge Avenue in the Bronx.  We have the one
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          2  here in Manhattan, and we have one in Brooklyn.  We

          3  make sure they get to one of those hospitals and

          4  that they get seen because they have to be assessed.

          5    So they get to see a mental health professional.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  How about

          7  financial instability?

          8                 MS. JOYNES:  That depends on the

          9  individual veteran. If they are totally jobless,

         10  they come to our office and they don't have a job at

         11  all, we make sure that they go to the U.S.

         12  Department of Veterans Affairs' regional office

         13  because they have a vocational rehab program where

         14  they can let a vet get assistance in redefining

         15  their ability to get a job and everything.

         16                 We also have the NYC.gov website

         17  where it's NYC jobs.  The different branches of the

         18  military have what they call basically it's a re-

         19  adjustment outlet for returning service members.

         20  Just to give you an example, the Marine Corps has a

         21  program called Marine for Life, so looking for a job

         22  depends on the ability of that individual veteran

         23  and what they're looking for we make sure that they

         24  get.

         25                 And while they're looking for
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          2  employment, we also put them in touch with the job

          3  centers through the Human Resources Administration

          4  because while you're looking for work, you still

          5  have to feed your family and support your family, so

          6  temporarily they can be on welfare and receive food

          7  stamps while they're still looking for employment.

          8  And we also point them in the direction of the New

          9  York State Department of Labor because they are

         10  eligible for Unemployment while they're looking for

         11  work.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Okay.  Let

         13  me just ask one more question, Mr. Chair, and then

         14  I'll turn it back over.  I'm curious about the

         15  Veterans Advisory Board.  What is your office's

         16  involvement with the Veterans Advisory Board?

         17                 MS. JOYNES:  The Veterans Advisory

         18  Board advises the Director of Veterans Affairs on

         19  issues in the community.  It consists of nine

         20  members.  Five of them are merrily  appointees and

         21  four of them are appointees of the Council.  In

         22  fact, we're scheduled to have a meeting next week.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  So do you

         24  have periodic, regular, intermittent meetings?

         25                 MS. JOYNES:  They're slated.  We have
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          2  to have four meetings a year.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  I'm sorry?

          4                 MS. JOYNES:  We're legislated to have

          5  four meetings per year.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Four

          7  meetings per year.

          8                 MS. JOYNES:  Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Have you

         10  done so?

         11                 MS. JOYNES:  Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  You've made

         13  those.

         14                 MS. JOYNES:  And we're having a

         15  meeting next week. That will be the first meeting

         16  that we've had for this year. That's the start of

         17  the four.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Okay.  Thank

         19  you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  First of

         21  all, I want to give the opportunity to everyone to

         22  have their questions before I made some remarks.

         23                 The Hearing today is an oversight

         24  Hearing prompted in part by the fact that there was

         25  a move by MOVA to another location.  It appears that
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          2  the information we received in the Committee was

          3  that there was a sign posted at the old MOVA office

          4  that they had moved, so we were understanding, third

          5  party, that there was a move.  None of the veterans

          6  groups were ever informed that the Office for the

          7  Mayor's Veterans' Affairs had actually moved.  So we

          8  wanted to know a little bit more about that.  The

          9  Director has explained that and said that it's not a

         10  move, per se, but that it is a satellite office,

         11  which is a few blocks away from the main office.

         12  Needless to say, that's her explanation.  We had to

         13  take it for what it is.

         14                 But since we've now embarked on a

         15  question of the Mayor's Advisory Board, which has

         16  been an issue that I've been very active on, you are

         17  now stating in this Committee that there's a meeting

         18  of the Mayor's Advisory Board next week.

         19                 MS. JOYNES:  Correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  I have some

         21  more questions about that because I'm not under the

         22  understanding that people have been appointed to the

         23  Board yet, so why don't you explain to me who's on

         24  the Board now.

         25                 MS. JOYNES:  From my understanding,
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          2  the terms are still open even though they have an

          3  expiration date.  The people that are assigned or

          4  given appointment to the Board serve until they are

          5  either asked to leave the Board or someone else is

          6  re assigned, so the folks that are actually

          7  currently on the Board are still working.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  In other

          9  words, the old Boards members for this Board that

         10  has not met in about one year and four months,

         11  right, because they haven't had a meeting in well

         12  over a year.

         13                 MS. JOYNES:  That's not true.  We had

         14  a meeting last October.  It was either August or

         15  October of last year.  So we're slated to have a

         16  meeting --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  You had an

         18  October meeting in 2006?

         19                 MS. JOYNES:  Yes.  It was either

         20  August or October we had a meeting.  I could get the

         21  correct date to the Council Member, and we'll make

         22  sure that you have that information.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  We're under

         24  very different information, so I don't -- we've been

         25  operating, and my discussions, quite frankly, with
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          2  the Administration have been, and the City Council,

          3  because we have also not finalized our appointments

          4  to the Board, because there has not been,

          5  apparently, I want to say this carefully, enough

          6  cohesion between the Administration and the Council

          7  to the appointment.  We're under the understanding

          8  that there has been no meeting for over a year.

          9  That's also based on our conversations with the

         10  Administration.  So if you are presenting to us

         11  today at this Hearing that it was in October of last

         12  year, then we have different messages that we're

         13  receiving.

         14                 MS. JOYNES:  When I leave the Hearing

         15  today, I will make sure that we make contact you and

         16  let you know exactly what the date was of the last

         17  meeting.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  The

         19  additional point is that there was also legislation

         20  passed by the Committee and this Council last year

         21  with regards to the Boards and some of their

         22  activities.  I just find it very interesting that it

         23  appears that there's a meeting next week for a Board

         24  that hasn't met in well over a year, and of which

         25  many of them probably will not be on the new Board
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          2  because we have new appointments that both the

          3  Council, and I believe the Mayor's Office, is

          4  making.  So why are we having a meeting with members

          5  of the Board that hasn't met in quite a bit of time

          6  when they're supposed to be different Board members?

          7                 MS. JOYNES:  Right now what I have in

          8  front of me, the members that are currently sitting

          9  on the Board, we have made two new appointments to

         10  the Board on the Mayor's side of the house, and I do

         11  understand that on the Council side of the house

         12  that one of the Board members has resigned.  We just

         13  got that information.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  But there's

         15  no new Council appointments?

         16                 MS. JOYNES:  No.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Okay.  So

         18  your role with the Mayor's Advisory Board is exactly

         19  what?  What is your role and MOVA's role with the

         20  Advisory Board?

         21                 MS. JOYNES:  Our role with the

         22  Advisory Board is for the Advisory Board to advise

         23  the Director of the Office on issues that are

         24  germane to the veterans community.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  The Advisory
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          2  Board should be advising you --

          3                 MS. JOYNES:  Yes, on issues that come

          4  up in the community.  Anything, any concerns,

          5  problems that sort of thing.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  It's a weird

          7  type of thing right now.  I just want to say this,

          8  please do not take this personally, Clarice Joynes,

          9  because this is not directed towards you but towards

         10  the Administration.  I'm under the understanding

         11  based on the conversations with the Speaker's Office

         12  of this body that it appears that the Mayor's Office

         13  has taken quite a bit of time, the Administration,

         14  to put forward these appointments, whether their own

         15  voting processes or whatever the bureaucracy

         16  regarding this one board.

         17                 The charter mandates that they meet

         18   "X" amount of times a year.  The charter mandates

         19  that "X" amount of individuals are appointed by the

         20  Mayor and appointed by the Council.  Can you do me a

         21  favor and help me express to your Administration the

         22  fact that we're under the understanding that they

         23  haven't met in violation of the charter, and that

         24  they haven't made the new appointments in violation

         25  of the charter and the law, and we would like this
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          2  Advisory Board to actually be doing what they are

          3  supposed to be doing to help you and the Mayor and

          4  this great City provide services to our veterans.

          5  Will you help me relay that?

          6                 MS. JOYNES:  I will definitely relay

          7  that to the Mayor, yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  I appreciate

          9  that.  Council Member James.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Ms. Joynes,

         11  one question which may be sort of off point, but

         12  it's relevant to recent media reports based on a Mr.

         13   -- The reporter from channel 7, Bob Woodruff, and

         14  the traumatic brain disorder and our inability of VA

         15  hospitals to deal with those disorders.  As you

         16  know, I'm sure you know the last four days they've

         17  been covering Mr. Woodruff who received, I think,

         18  exemplary but exceptional medical attention.  It was

         19  an exception rather than the rule, unfortunately.

         20  What they did was they went around the country, and

         21  they went to a lot of VA hospitals and a lot of the

         22  VA hospitals were not equipped to deal with this

         23  brain disorder.  Do you know whether or not this is

         24  on the agenda, or this is a priority of this

         25  Administration, or your office or the VA hospital in
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          2  New York?  Or whether or not we're equipped to deal

          3  with these brain trauma disorders?

          4                 MS. JOYNES:  Unfortunately, I didn't

          5  see the news piece on Mr. Woodruff, but I do know

          6  that right now, depending on the injury of service

          7  member serving in the current war, depending on

          8  where they are injured, they usually get seen either

          9  at Lanstel (phonetic) or somewhere in Germany.  Or

         10  when they come back to the states, they could be at

         11  Brook Army Medical Center.  They could be at Walter

         12  Reed Medical Center where they get the majority of

         13  their initial health care.  Then when they come to

         14  their locality, whether it's New York City or

         15  anywhere else in the country, the service member who

         16  is injured is usually given follow- up care.  I

         17  would have to look into the traumatic brain injury

         18  and look into the piece that you have seen and get

         19  back with you on that issue.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Would you

         21  please?  And also I've noticed recently that a

         22  number of veterans that have served are receiving

         23  dunning letters from the Federal Government for a

         24  number of services, for a number of things.  They're

         25  getting letters from the Department of Veterans'
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          2  Affairs for money that they owe to the office for a

          3  variety of services.  The question that I have is

          4  if, in fact, a veteran receives one of these

          5  letters, would I refer them to your office or where

          6  would I refer them to?

          7                 MS. JOYNES:  You could refer them to

          8  my office or, depending on what they received the

          9  letter for, if it was for health care issues, they

         10  could be referred to any of the VA hospitals here in

         11  the New York City area.  But we can definitely, if

         12  you refer them to our office, we can make sure that

         13  they get the follow up at the local VA.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Okay, thank

         15  you.

         16                 MS. JOYNES:  You're very welcome.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  I just

         18  wanted to follow up on one of the issues that

         19  Council Member Gentile raised.  You mention about

         20  the mailing list that you have that's actually

         21  available to other people as long as you take out, I

         22  guess, the person's name?

         23                 MS. JOYNES:  No, no.  That's not what

         24  I had stated. I said we don't give out the person --

         25  if someone signs up for our mailing list and they
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          2  give personal information --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  I'm sorry.

          4  I didn't phrase the question correctly,

          5  organizations, veterans organizations.

          6                 MS. JOYNES:  Right, we just have the

          7  address of the organization itself, and it's

          8  addressed to the commander or president of the

          9  individual organization.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Now, have

         11  you ever sent out anything to those veterans

         12  organizations about anything?

         13                 MS. JOYNES:  Yes, we have.  Yes, we

         14  have.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  When was the

         16  last time you did that?

         17                 MS. JOYNES:  The last time we did

         18  that was last year.  We haven't done a newsletter

         19  recently, and we're in the process of actually

         20  revamping or website, and a news letter will be

         21  going out in March.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  You know, I

         23  find that very interesting, and that's the reason I

         24  ask this question because my office reached out to

         25  your office to do a mailing to the veterans
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          2  organizations.  I wanted to do a mailing on some of

          3  the legislation that I have and let them know what's

          4  going on if they wanted to support it.  You got us

          5  the list.  You gave us the list.  We did the

          6  mailing, and I must have gotten back 20 to 30

          7  letters returned, either the veterans organizations

          8  didn't exist, didn't exist at that location or the

          9  person had moved.

         10                 So I question how often do you do

         11  this if your list is that inaccurate?  Because I

         12  know when I get something back, I immediately, well,

         13  why is this?  Is this the wrong address?  I check it

         14  out, and one of the individuals, because you didn't

         15  give us the name, we just had the organization, it

         16  was the widow of the service person who called us to

         17  say, to be getting this literature for a long time,

         18  and her husband had passed away years ago.  So my

         19  staff followed up and said, well, who is the person

         20  that we should be mailing this to?  And we finally

         21  got the information, and I've changed my list.

         22                 But I question how often do you

         23  actually correspond with veterans groups, because if

         24  you did, there wouldn't be 20 to 30 mistakes on that

         25  list.  And, again, it's not against you personally,
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          2  but at a certain point you have to take

          3  responsibility for this office, and the

          4  Administration really has to take responsibility.

          5  There is a total disconnect what you tell us and

          6  what's happening in reality.  And it's just a shame

          7  that we're not doing more for the veterans of this

          8  City.  Regardless of what the Federal Government

          9  does, regardless of what the State Government does,

         10  we should be stepping up to the plate.

         11                 And your budget is just one example.

         12  I mean that's ridiculous $207,000.  And you know

         13  we've talked about this, and I'm pointing to the

         14  Mayor's liaison, this has got to stop.  When are we

         15  going to put some money in to help these veterans?

         16  Let's stop talking about it and actually do

         17  something.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Just to go

         19  back to the Veterans' Advisory Board, which I

         20  authored, as far as the reconfiguration of it.

         21  There had to be veteran members, which I thought was

         22  imperative in my mind.

         23                 MS. JOYNES:  Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  And had to

         25  be one from every borough minimum.  I think the

                                                            54

          1  COMMITTEE ON VETERANS

          2  Mayor appoints five, and we appoint four, I think it

          3  was.

          4                 MS. JOYNES:  Correct, correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  I would

          6  really appreciate you follow up to this Committee.

          7  First of all, I don't even know who is on the board

          8  anymore.  I lost such contact with it with the lack

          9  of meetings.  I think we have to hold them, their

         10  feet to the fire in that they could be helpful in

         11  what we're doing here following through with the

         12  Administration and with this Committee as well, and

         13  perhaps make noise with the New York City media.

         14                 So if you let us know exactly when

         15  the next meeting is, I'm not saying I'll be there

         16  myself, but I'd like to know when it is, and the

         17  membership of it.  We can't make them come, it's a

         18  great country of ours, we can't make them but if

         19  they don't show up, the members, we can just re-

         20  appoint somebody else.  Some people really care, and

         21  I'm sure many people out there would like to be on

         22  it who would show up and make it a live issue for

         23  themselves.

         24                 So I think we need to really move

         25  ahead.  It's really frustrating, this Veterans
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          2  Advisory Board business.  We have to get them

          3  meeting at least four times a year.  With the Chair

          4  and the Council, Harold and Members of the

          5  Committee, hopefully we can really start meeting for

          6  sure at least once every three months.  We could

          7  work together, Council Committee and the Veterans

          8  Advisory Board, because I think it's an important

          9  issue to help veterans whether it's hospitals

         10  whether it's whatever.  At least there is no power,

         11  we can at least make a lot of noise about it, and

         12  where there is power, if they were pushing that they

         13  feel you need more money, it would just be another

         14  outlet for all of our concerns, our joint interests.

         15    Thank you.  Thank you Clarice, Ms. Joynes.

         16                 MS. JOYNES:  You're welcome,

         17  Councilman.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Thank you,

         19  Mr. Chairman. Just one final question.  There is

         20  currently an introduction in the Council that is

         21  before this Committee, and I would hope soon to have

         22  that Hearing but it has -- very soon, okay, thank

         23  you, Mr. Chairman.  It has 26 sponsors, and it would

         24  do exactly as we have been suggesting here over and

         25  over again in different ways, and that would be to
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          2  contact on an annual basis the veterans that live

          3  within the City of New York to make that the

          4  Administration takes the initiative to reach out

          5  through written contact with the veterans of the

          6  City of New York to let them know what benefits on

          7  State, Federal, City level are available to them.

          8  That is now an introduction that will soon have a

          9  Hearing here before this Committee.  Do you have a

         10  thought on that legislation?

         11                 MS. JOYNES:  Well, as soon as I see

         12  the introduction, I will be able to come before the

         13  Council and make my concerns or thoughts on that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  We'll

         15  certainly get you that copy as you leave today, but

         16  that's really what it says.  It's an amendment to

         17  the City Charter, Section 14, which requires the

         18  Mayor's Office of Veterans' Affairs to send out

         19  written correspondence to the veterans of the City

         20  of New York advising them of benefits that are

         21  available to them and how they might be able to

         22  access those benefits whether through your office or

         23  otherwise.

         24                 MS. JOYNES:  Thank you, Council

         25  Member Gentile.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you

          3  very much.  Any other questions?  Okay, I just want

          4  to wrap up a couple of things. I appreciate your

          5  testimony today and what you're presenting.  I

          6  definitely recognize the position that you're in.  I

          7  think that you have continually heard a sentiment

          8  from myself and colleagues who are Members of this

          9  Committee and Members of the City Council at large

         10  that we generally feel that there needs to be more

         11  done for the veterans.  There is a lot of

         12  initiatives, some of which I have presented

         13  budgetarily to open up resource centers throughout

         14  the City.  I know Council Member Gentile's bill,

         15  which has a lot of support in this body, and, quite

         16  frankly, support from the Chair of this Committee,

         17  and I look forward to having that Hearing very soon.

         18    It would help to elicit your support in relaying

         19  these messages back to our Mayor.

         20                 We don't want to abuse the

         21  Administration, and we don't want the Administration

         22  to view this Committee or its members as

         23  adversarial.  We would like to have a very good

         24  working relationship.  We just need to close the gap

         25  in the way we want to approach this.  Quite frankly,
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          2  the one measure of our very capitalist society that

          3  you measure caring and good intent is money.  That's

          4  the reality.  Resources are necessary to provide

          5  more services, so, in closing, I want to give you

          6  the opportunity to make any closing remarks you

          7  might want to say, but I would elicit your support,

          8  so that we don't have to continue to "butt heads" on

          9  these issues.  Because I think we all have the same

         10  idea and concept of wanting to do more.  I think,

         11  unfortunately, the devil is in the details, and

         12  maybe we just want some more details.

         13                 MS. JOYNES:  Thank you very much,

         14  Council Member Monserrate and all of the Members of

         15  the Committee on veterans issues.  I will be taking

         16  your concerns back to the Mayor and addressing those

         17  concerns.  We definitely look forward to working

         18  with the City Council on addressing needs of the

         19  veterans of New York City, so I thank you for

         20  listening to my testimony today.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  The last

         22  request I'm going to make on the record, only

         23  because you have stated that you're under the belief

         24  or understanding that the Advisory Board met in

         25  October of last year.  If you can get back to us
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          2  today to our Counsel, Harold Gates, have your staff

          3  contact, tell us exactly when that was and who

          4  attended, I would appreciate it.

          5                 MS. JOYNES:  Exactly.  We will do

          6  that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you

          8  very much.

          9                 MS. JOYNES:  You're very welcome.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  We're going

         11  to be calling up Ralph DeToro, Joe Bello and Thomas

         12  Muhlfeld.  Gentlemen, please identify yourselves and

         13  go ahead and testify.

         14                 MR. DETORO:  Good afternoon.  My name

         15  is Ralph DeToro, and I'm with the Disabled Veteran

         16  Vendors.  I'd like to thank the Committee for having

         17  this meeting today.  I'd like to address something

         18  that the Council Member Gentile said.  When this

         19  Committee first started, as I first testified here,

         20  that the first thing the City should have had was a

         21  mailing list, a database to work by to notify all of

         22  the veterans what their dues are, where they can get

         23  help.  This has not been the first time this was

         24  brought up.  The Mayor's Office of Veterans' Affairs

         25  has known about it and has ignored it, and all they
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          2  have to do is do a foil, and then when they'll get a

          3  list of name of every person in New York City who

          4  served this country, so they can get a letter of

          5  information, a thank- you letter if they just came

          6  out of the service.  I think that's what your bill

          7  is going to address. I hope it finally comes about

          8  because it's long needed.  It's been long delayed.

          9                 I also have a problem with what the

         10  Council Member Fidler says.  We stand here and we

         11  say we're the federal government's responsibility.

         12  Well, when we served our country, we served

         13  everyone.  We served our country, we served the

         14  City, and we served the State.  I think it's

         15  incumbent upon all of them to make sure that the

         16  veterans get what they deserve.  It seemed as if he

         17  was more interested in, is the federal government

         18  going to give us some money?  Well, New York City

         19  has a surplus right now, lots of money.  Nothing of

         20  it has been appropriated for veterans.  We got a

         21  $207,000 budget to take care of 400,000, it's less

         22  than a dollar a veteran.  We got to get on the ball.

         23    We got to start doing things.  The time for

         24  rhetoric has got to stop.

         25                 Congressman Avella has some good
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          2  bills in.  Gentile has some bills in.  My friend,

          3  Monserrate, but it's all stopped. We can't get

          4  Avella's bill on Committee that would probably help

          5  veterans, two things, help veterans get jobs and

          6  help one veteran get back his life that the

          7  Administration destroyed ten years ago. There's two.

          8    It's 446 and 447.  He deserves it.  Veterans

          9  deserve it.  We have to do a heck of a lot more and

         10  stop relying on the federal -- even if all three of

         11  them take care of it, the more the merrier, that's

         12  what these guys deserve and women and men that are

         13  coming back now deserve.  If you want to call them

         14  heroes, treat them as heroes.  Don't spin them.

         15  That's the end of my testimony.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  For the

         17  record, it's always a pleasure hearing from you.  I

         18  remember that when we first started this Committee,

         19  it is a relatively new Committee started under the

         20  old Speaker, Gifford Miller, and there was a lot of

         21  doubts as to what this Committee could actually do.

         22  I think that we've already come a long way in

         23  helping to energize this debate and discussion and

         24  I, too, at times have found myself extremely

         25  frustrated dealing with the politics and the
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          2  Administration on many of these issues. But I think

          3  that in the absence of this Committee we would have

          4  very little in the way of a formal mechanism to deal

          5  with these issues, and I want to say thank you to

          6  all of you that consistently have come out to these

          7  Hearings and provided testimony and insight because

          8  it really is being recorded and it's being heard.

          9  So, please, sir.

         10                 MR. MUHLFELD:  Good afternoon to all

         11  the Council Members.  It's a pleasure being here

         12  meeting you again.  I'd like to introduce myself.

         13  My name is Thomas Muhlfeld, and I reside at New Era

         14  Veterans, Inc.  It's a program located in the Bronx

         15  section of New York.  Our building is a permanent

         16  home to 150 men and women veterans from World War II

         17  and we just got a guy in today from the Iraq crisis.

         18                 With respect to all, I would be

         19  remiss if I didn't exercise my disappointment with

         20  MOVA.  The first and foremost issue is faulty

         21  leadership.  At the previous oversight committee,

         22  talking about MOVA, Ms. Joynes testified that her

         23  office made referrals to approximately 300

         24  individuals monthly.

         25                 I myself talked to Ms. Joynes
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          2  regarding a very serious issue.  The problem was,

          3  new mattresses were needed for our entire building,

          4  150.  The men and women were sleeping on 10- year

          5  old, refurbished junk that cost us at that time $17

          6  a mattress.  It all needed to be replaced.  When I

          7  asked her for help, she responded, call Sleepy's,

          8  see if they'll donate, and the line went dead.  That

          9  was referral number one from Ms. Joynes.

         10                 I took it upon myself to write the

         11  Mayor, Mayor Bloomberg, I wanted him to see me,

         12  explaining the hardship our veterans are facing.

         13  Two weeks later Ms. Joynes called me, now I wrote

         14  the Mayor, mind you.  Two weeks later Ms. Joynes

         15  calls me, and she says to me, in effect, nothing can

         16  be done.  DHS is the Mayor, and the line went dead.

         17  That's referral number two.  That's from the Mayor's

         18  Office of Veterans' Affairs.

         19                 I want to be perfectly honest with

         20  you.  As far as I'm concerned, the Mayor's Office

         21  for Veterans' Affairs is nothing more than a very

         22  expensive switchboard.  I could do this myself for

         23  $100,000 a year.  I could get one of them little

         24  things and plug you right in.  I don't need the

         25  Mayor's office to run around and jump up like
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          2  they're actually doing something when you could call

          3  any, you know what?  Just call the VA, somebody will

          4  answer you if they can, being they're so overloaded.

          5                 MOVA, and especially the Mayor, have

          6  and still are failing our veterans miserably.  An

          7  office that is nothing more than window dressing who

          8  are direct kowtows to the Administrations,

          9  compounded with severe funding flaws, just a slap in

         10  the face to every veteran that lives in New York

         11  City.  We must reiterate that our Mayor needs to

         12  allocate, and I thought it was $82,000 a year they

         13  were getting, $200,000 is pretty right.  Give more

         14  money to MOVA.  We must put someone in charge of

         15  MOVA, a person who won't be modularized, and I

         16  suggest Mr. Avella.  Someone who has dedicated his

         17  life --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  I don't

         19  think that someone who's the Mayor's could also be

         20  the MOVA.

         21                 MR. MUHLFELD.  I wanted you

         22  specifically because you got this issue of priority.

         23    I want to thank you three gentlemen expressly for

         24  trying to do what you can in a very bad situation.

         25  Thank you.
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          2                 MR. BELLO:  Thank you, Committee

          3  Members for allowing me to be here.  I didn't

          4  prepare any testimony because I was really

          5  interested to hear what Ms. Joynes had to say.

          6  Surprisingly enough, I didn't hear pretty much

          7  anything.  I have to agree with a lot of what was

          8  said.

          9                 First of all, in terms of the move,

         10  one of things that I have been saying for awhile now

         11  is there is a total lack of communication and a

         12  disconnect between the Mayor's Office of Veterans'

         13  Affairs and the Administration to the community.  A

         14  lot of us are trying to figure out what is it

         15  exactly that this Administration wants, and a lot of

         16  us feel that the Administration just doesn't

         17  understand the community.  When MOVA moved out of

         18  346, the notice on that door said they moved, not

         19  that it was a temporary, that they moved.  And who

         20  did they tell?  Who in the community knew?  No one

         21  got a newsletter.  No one got an e- mail, nothing.

         22  So that the was first thing.  No one knew.

         23                 Then we go back to when she stated

         24  that she serves about 300 to 400 veterans per year.

         25  Now, Mr. Avella, you asked that question at the last
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          2  Hearing two years ago, and I remember you saying

          3  that roughly came out to about 12 per day.  I don't

          4  believe there's anybody in this room that believed

          5  that she serves 12 people per day.  So for her to

          6  say it, I just find to be disingenuous at best.

          7                 Also, she says that she has strong

          8  ties to the tenants at 346 Broadway.  I beg to

          9  differ for that.  I know of the Wounded Warriors

         10  Project, a group that works with vets who come back

         11  maimed and looking for help and services, asking her

         12  for space.  She told them no.  Then she told them,

         13  well, you know what, if you can find somebody to

         14  partner up with, you can share the space.  They went

         15  to the VVA, made a deal with them to share the

         16  space, and when Wounded Warriors Project went to go

         17  in, she said to them, I never said such a thing.  So

         18  I don't know what strong ties she has to the

         19  tenants.

         20                 As far as the homeless program, I sit

         21  on Committee Board Two's Board and Avenue Veterans

         22  Advisory Board, and other than her coming to the

         23  press conference in December, she has never been to

         24  Board and Avenue.  So I don't know what that was all

         25  about.
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          2                 Max productivity?  Where?  Work with

          3  community based organizations.  Who?  I thought it

          4  was interesting that she said that she does

          5  newsletters and the last one she did in November.

          6  When Mike Handy was the Director, he did a

          7  newsletter on an even smaller budget once every

          8  quarter.  Now we're getting them Memorial Day,

          9  Veterans Day.

         10                 If she's going to talk about how the

         11  federal government, and she partners up with the

         12  federal government and works with the federal

         13  government, and the VA, and this is that, things

         14  change constantly in Washington.  Bills are being

         15  written. Laws are being passed.  Benefits are

         16  changing.  Who is she informing in this community?

         17  No one knows.  No one knows, and the OPS money is a

         18  joke, and I find it unique that she has to say she

         19  has to put the letters on for the VA.

         20                 In terms of the Veterans Advisory

         21  Board, no one has seen them.  I know the majority of

         22  the Members on the Board, and when I spoke to a

         23  couple of them, their recollection from two of the

         24  individuals was that the last meeting was on July

         25  25, 2006, the same day we had the Hearing, that
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          2  press conference outside of City Hall.  That's just

          3  food for thought.

          4                 In terms of Corporal Daniels that she

          5  talked as a success story, that was an outright lie,

          6  and I'm going to say that again.  That was an

          7  outright lie.  That gentleman is being mentored by

          8  the Police Commissioner.  He got in touch with the

          9  Wounded Warriors Project, who, in turn, got in touch

         10  with the Soldiers & Sailors, who, in turn, got in

         11  touch with me.  Between all of us, we helped him.

         12  No one -- and if I had to bring them in for you to

         13  meet, no one will remember Ms. Joynes coming in at

         14  any time to try to work the situation.

         15                 Lastly, I appreciate the Hearing

         16  today.  I appreciate everything that you guys have

         17  done.  I truly believe that if this Administration

         18  wants to make MOVA a better piece, they're going to

         19  have to start communicating.  They're going to have

         20  to start being a little more open, and they're going

         21  to have to start taking some aggressive measures.

         22  That would possibly be even having to fire Ms.

         23  Joynes.  She has poisoned the well for too many

         24  years, and too many veterans do not trust her of

         25  what's going on.  Thank you, gentlemen.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you,

          3  gentlemen, for your testimony.  Do we have any

          4  questions for the panel?  I'm going to call up Pedro

          5  Seda, Rob Timmons, Wilbur Weder.  There's one more

          6  panel after that.  Gentlemen, when you testify,

          7  please say your name clearly for the record and the

          8  organization that you're representing, if any.

          9  We'll start with the gentleman in the tie.

         10                 MR. TIMMONS:  I'm Rob Timmons.  I'm

         11  the Field and Outreach Director for Iraq and

         12  Afghanistan Veterans of America.

         13                 MR. SEDA:  I'm Pedro Seda.  I

         14  represent the Bronx Veterans Center and the American

         15  Legion Post 1065 in the Bronx.

         16                 MR. WEDER:  I'm Wilbur Weder.  I am

         17  here representing myself as a veteran and an

         18  advocate for both health care and veterans issues.

         19                 MR. TIMMONS:  First of all, I'd like

         20  to thank the City Council for having us here today,

         21  and also I would have liked to have thanked

         22  Executive Director Joynes for her testimony, but she

         23  hasn't stuck around to listen to the veterans' side

         24  of the story.  She says she works with veterans

         25  organizations, and she keeps in constant communique
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          2  with them, but she hasn't even stuck around to

          3  listen to us.  So that's an indicator in itself.

          4                 Well, I work for Iraq and Afghanistan

          5  Veterans of America, and we are the first and

          6  largest veterans organization that deals with Iraq

          7  and Afghanistan veterans.  We currently have 1.6

          8  million veterans that have either served in Iraq or

          9  Afghanistan or have come home.  It just seems to me

         10  that Ms. Joynes says that there are over 400,000

         11  vets here in New York City, and I know other people

         12  have made comments about this.  One person said it

         13  was even a dollar a day spent on veterans.  It's

         14  more like 50 cents with the math, and that's not

         15  even counting salaries that pay for these people, so

         16  we're probably in single digits cents that actually

         17  goes to the actual vet towards veterans.  So you

         18  can't even do a mailing to the entire veteran City

         19  population.

         20                 Basically, it just seems that the

         21  Mayor's Office of Veterans' Affairs is just a

         22  figment.  It's just a way to give some people some

         23  jobs, and only four people at that.  So it's a sad

         24  state.

         25                 I agree with the gentleman who sat in
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          2  this chair before me that said he had a disagreement

          3  with the Council Member about the federal government

          4  picking up the tab.  The federal government can't

          5  even do the job effectively itself.  The VA is

          6  chronically underfunded, understaffed, and from year

          7  to year they have to do emergency appropriations in

          8  the billions to even cover their budget shortfalls.

          9  So being that the City has a budget surplus, it's

         10  imperative that more local efforts are made to

         11  support our veteran population because they are not

         12  just serving our nation, but serving our City as

         13  well.

         14                 I know just coming from my

         15  generation, as an Iraq veteran myself, I do have a

         16  personal stake in this.  But just coming from where

         17  I sit every day, there are so many veterans coming

         18  back from the current wars in Iraq and Afghanistan

         19  with so many issues, especially what is going to be

         20  the trademark of these wars is post- traumatic

         21  stress disorder and other mental, health care and

         22  readjustment issues.  And to re- integrate them into

         23  civilian society, especially here in New York City

         24  where things are crazy in this City.  It's a rough

         25  town.  So in order to re integrate them, they really
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          2  are going to need one- stop shops like Council

          3  Member Gentile and Council Member Monserrate have

          4  put there.  They're really going to need these

          5  things.  And the one stop shop shouldn't be four

          6  cubicles in an office.  It really needs to get out

          7  greater expansion into the communities.  I don't see

          8  it happening.  I really don't see it happening.

          9                 I stand here with other veterans

         10  organizations and other veterans in the City and

         11  really pray that sitting here in these chambers and

         12  testifying and trying to nail it to the coffin like

         13   -- I really hope that it's not just talk and that

         14  we can actually make moves and get some action,

         15  because we need to be proactive with our veteran

         16  community, and we're not right now.  And this is

         17  happening while we're in a war, in wars, not just a

         18  war, there's two wars going on right now.  And a

         19  third, the war at home, we can do better here at

         20  home.  That's all I have to say.  Thank you very

         21  much, and I'll pass the mic.

         22                 MR. SEDA:  Good afternoon, Honorable

         23  Members of the Council.  My name is Pedro Seda.  I

         24  live in the Bronx.  I'm a former marine combat

         25  Vietnam veteran service connected.
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          2                 It's sad to say that the incoming and

          3  former veterans are treated as second class

          4  citizens.  We are the last to be thought of in the

          5  City of New York, and as the former gentleman

          6  stated, what is the sense of having MOVA when they

          7  don't do anything for the veteran?

          8                 The Director stated that they service

          9  300 to 400 veterans a month.  Fine, it's okay to

         10  take names coming to an office.  What is the success

         11  rate?  She mentioned trying to place 100 homeless

         12  veterans in 100 days.  What about the other 400,000

         13  veterans that live in New York?  What is their

         14  destiny?  I appreciate that the Council Members have

         15  brought forth legislation to the Mayor and to the

         16  City, but in the meantime our veterans are

         17  suffering.

         18                 Ms. Joynes, unfortunately, left

         19  because she apparently didn't like the bashing she

         20  was taking.  What is the sense of having MOVA if all

         21  they do, like the former gentleman spoke, all they

         22  do is refer you to one agency to another, and then

         23  they don't follow up on what that referral made.

         24  When I came back from Vietnam, I didn't have

         25  services that are at least being offered to the
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          2  incoming Iraq vets.  I didn't know I was eligible

          3  for Unemployment.  I didn't know that I was eligible

          4  for training. I wasn't informed of any of that.

          5                 Fortunately, throughout the years

          6  because of word of mouth, veterans were being

          7  informed that they are eligible for certain

          8  programs, certain benefits.  I know of veterans that

          9  were in Vietnam, one in particular had three purple

         10  hearts, a silver star, and he doesn't want to know

         11  anything of the VA.  The man was wounded three

         12  times, earned a silver star, and as far as he is

         13  concerned, the VA doesn't exist for him because of

         14  the way the veterans were treated and the way the

         15  government has treated them.

         16                 One of the Council Members stated

         17  that the federal government has to take care of the

         18  veterans.  It's not only the federal government.  As

         19  the other gentleman said, we served our country, we

         20  served our state and we served our City.  The

         21  federal government does their part in the funding,

         22  as little as it is, but fortunately I cannot

         23  complain of the assistance I've received from the

         24  Bronx VA, which happens to be one of the better VA

         25  hospitals in the country, but our City doesn't do

                                                            75

          1  COMMITTEE ON VETERANS

          2  enough for our veterans.  We need gentlemen like you

          3  that have brought forth this Committee and are

          4  trying to do something for us, and we appreciate it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Mr. Seda,

          6  just a very brief question.  I know that you have

          7  two affiliations here.  I know about the American

          8  Legion post in the Bronx obviously.  I've been there

          9  a few times, but tell me about the Bronx Veterans

         10  Center.

         11                 MR. SEDA:  The Bronx Veterans Center

         12  is supposed to be a center within the community.

         13  Right now it is based at the Bronx VA.  They're an

         14  outreach program totally aside of the Veterans

         15  Administration.  They're federally funded.  Right

         16  now they are trying to get their own place, but

         17  they're having difficulties because they're supposed

         18  to be located within the community, and they service

         19  our veterans for job claims, forms, benefits.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Okay.  I'd

         21  like to follow up with you after this Hearing is

         22  over if you can stick around for a few minutes.

         23  Please, sir, present your testimony.

         24                 MR. WEDER:  My name is Wilbur Weder,

         25  and I am a veteran.  I live in Manhattan.  I
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          2  advocated very strongly for the VA hospital when

          3  they were trying to close it.  I did not see Clarice

          4  Joynes in the Mayor's Office doing anything early

          5  on.  It took a long time for them to get involved,

          6  and I'm very disappointed that she seems to think

          7  that they did something positive until the last

          8  minute.

          9                 The other thing I'd like to say is

         10  that I don't care to bash Ms. Joynes.  She is the

         11  Mayor's appointee.  It is the Mayor who I would like

         12  to bash.  He is the one who doesn't provide the

         13  money.  She operates under his direction.  What is

         14  he telling her to do?  It doesn't seem to me like he

         15  cares about us veterans.

         16                 The other point I'd like to make is

         17  that you look at the budget, and I did go and get

         18  the pages out of the 3,000 plus pages in the

         19  document, and you can see, as you have said, there

         20  was $207,726 in the budget.  Of that, $103,000 comes

         21  from the State. I went and looked at the revenue

         22  side.  I didn't really expect to find anything

         23  there, but, sure enough, the State gives half the

         24  money.  So the City only provides $104,726 for

         25  veterans in this City.  I find that so pitiful it's
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          2  hardly worth further comment.           However, I

          3  will make one further comment.  There is in the

          4  budget also under operations a measly $6,178, and I

          5  presume the offices must be rent free because this

          6  is for supplies.  Now how much can you do with

          7  amount of money?  Can you even do one mailing?  How

          8  is she going to put out a newsletter?  Who is she

          9  going to send it to, 50 organizations maybe?  That

         10  doesn't serve us as veterans.

         11                 I find it untenable that she can sit

         12  here and say that we do all of these things when I

         13  know from my own experience when I used to run a

         14  volunteer hotline in Washington, D.C. with 150

         15  volunteers, 24 hours a day, and if we could take

         16  care of 400 people a month, we were doing well.  And

         17  we had to really work hard to find referrals.

         18                 Is this City agency simply a referral

         19  agency?  And let's talk about that.  She said that

         20  they're a liaison office. Well, how do they do all

         21  of this liaison work, all this referral work, all

         22  this follow up work with only four staff that's now

         23  going to become three?  If I read the budget

         24  correctly.  So I appreciate all that you are doing.

         25  I appreciate and thank you for having this Hearing,
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          2  but I don't see where we're going to make any

          3  progress if we continue to allow this Mayor to make

          4  such a joke out of his Veterans Affairs office.  I

          5  hope that you will do something to change that.

          6  Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you

          8  very much.

          9                 MR. TIMMONS:  May I make just one

         10  more comment?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Yes.

         12                 MR. TIMMONS:  We have a

         13  communications, a public service announcement would

         14  take care of the mailing.  I mean, any news media

         15  would be willing to reach out to the veterans and

         16  let them know where they could be serviced or where

         17  they can be put on line or where they can register

         18  as veterans of the City of New York.  You wouldn't

         19  need a mailing.  All you have to do is reach out to

         20  the media, ask them to reach out to the veterans in

         21  a public announcement on a regular basis, and that

         22  would take care of all the mailings, and it wouldn't

         23  cost anything.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Let me say

         25  that it's also extremely refreshing to see women
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          2  involved in our veterans issues. So many times we

          3  overlook the fact that women have contributed

          4  greatly to our society and, in particular, to

          5  military service, and many times are directly

          6  impacted when their spouses are also involved.  So I

          7  want to give you all the opportunity.  Thank you for

          8  participating.  Please present yourself and your

          9  testimony. Thank you.

         10                 MS. MANISCALCO:  Good afternoon.

         11  Thank you very much for your consistent assistance

         12  with Veteran Affairs.  We certainly do appreciate

         13  that.  My name is Amy Maniscalco.  I wear a few hats

         14  in the community.  I am the Family Readiness

         15  Coordinator and have been since 2003 at the Staten

         16  Island Armory.  That is a volunteer position with

         17  the New York State Division of Military and Navel

         18  Affairs, Family Readiness Program.  I am also an

         19  active participant with the NYPD American Legion

         20  Post 460 currently working on a few issues with

         21  various elected officials, and in my actual job that

         22  I get paid to do, I work for a non- profit servicing

         23  450,000 Staten Islanders in times of disaster, and

         24  I've been recognized for my efforts by elected

         25  officials and by different organizations for
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          2  customer service.  So I don't say that to boast at

          3  all.  I merely said that, as I think I do know a

          4  thing or two about customer service.

          5                 I can't tell you what Ms. Joynes and

          6  her staff do, but I can tell you what they don't do.

          7    They do not return calls. They do not return e-

          8  mails, and they do respond by snail mail, at least

          9  when my colleagues and I have asked for help.

         10                 On April 1, 2005, I called Ms.

         11  Joynes' office, and I spoke with a Ms. Pitts

         12  regarding a massive reorganization that was taking

         13  place within the New York National Guard.  Units

         14  were being cut in the five boroughs, and jobs and

         15  slots for soldiers were being moved upstate to

         16  Buffalo.  Most of these soldiers were serving

         17  overseas and didn't even know what the New York Army

         18  National Guard and Air Guard was doing to them.

         19  They were going to leave many returning veterans

         20  without units and without a home.  My husband is a

         21  New York City police officer, as well as being a

         22  staff sergeant with the New York Army National

         23  Guard, and I was also concerned with our safety as a

         24  City being that we are a terror target with these

         25  job cuts.  I called, I e- mailed, I never heard back
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          2  from anyone at MOVA.

          3                 On Veterans Day 2007 David Goodman,

          4  who was unable to make it today, Treasurer of the

          5  NYPD American Legion Post 460, spoke in person, face

          6  to face with Ms. Joynes at the Veterans Day Parade

          7  about the myriad of problems and issues that we are

          8  currently fighting together existing with the City's

          9  extended military benefits package, an initiative

         10  which is affecting 1,700 veterans in the City, all

         11  City employees.  She assured Mr. Goodman that she

         12  would meet with us and urged him to call the office

         13  and schedule a meeting.  Dave called, spoke with

         14  Dave Curcio (phonetic) of MOVA, and he called again

         15  and never received response from MOVA.

         16                 In January our Legion Commander, Ron

         17  Dees (phonetic), who was unable to make the meeting

         18  today here, personally served a five- page letter

         19  that was written to D. Cass (phonetic) and also cc'd

         20  to Ms. Joynes regarding the military extended

         21  benefits package, which was basically addressing all

         22  of the issues that we had.  It was five pages of

         23  issues and concerns that we have.  It's March 1st,

         24  and we still have no meetings, no returned phone

         25  calls, nothing.
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          2                 I respectfully request a complete

          3  overhaul and restaffing of MOVA since from where I'm

          4  sitting, regardless of their location, they can't do

          5  their job.  The bottom line is that they're

          6  ineffective in carrying out their mission.  When I

          7  have a question, or a situation arises, as I had one

          8  recently over the past few months, and I see that

          9  Rob had left, I called the Iraq and Afghanistan

         10  Veterans of America, and they were there to help.  I

         11  called other veterans who are sitting here.  If it

         12  wasn't for Joe Bello, I wouldn't have known about

         13  today's meeting.  If I have other questions, I

         14  contact other veterans and speak to other veterans.

         15  It is a running joke in the veteran community to

         16  call Clarice Joynes or her office for assistance.

         17  And it's a pity. It's a shame, and I regret that I

         18  am just getting involved in the past two years with

         19  veterans affairs, but, God willing, I'm not going

         20  anywhere, and I'd like to see something substantial

         21  change within the City.

         22                 Funding, as other people have spoken

         23  about, I'm not going to go over what other people

         24  have commented about, but MOVA is a serious concern

         25  to the City, and I thank you again for your time.

                                                            83

          1  COMMITTEE ON VETERANS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Members in

          3  the audience that have participated with us, we want

          4  to make sure that everyone who represents any

          5  veterans groups, who are veterans, and would wish to

          6  get more involved, this Committee is also creating a

          7  database, so please see my Chief of Staff here, but

          8  before you leave, with your information so we can

          9  make sure that we can reach out for these types of

         10  events.  Dr. Works?

         11                 DR. WORKS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

         12  and thank you, distinguished Council Members on this

         13  Committee.  I greatly appreciate the opportunity

         14  that you are providing me to speak today.

         15                 Of course, we've all been enlightened

         16  by Ms. Joynes' testimony, which I thought was quite

         17  interesting, as I was actually making facial

         18  contortions, and I really wanted to just jump up and

         19  just say, are you really kidding me?  Are you

         20  kidding me?  And I'm certain she wouldn't have had

         21  some sort of a response to it.  But we all know

         22  that, of course, she is a puppet that's actually

         23  being told exactly what to do, what's going to be

         24  available, but it really is a crying shame that, of

         25  course, all of the veterans that are sitting in
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          2  front of you today are those that have actually

          3  sacrificed their lives and continue to do so.

          4                 For the record, I'm Dr. Raphael

          5  Works.  I should have stated that at the beginning,

          6  Chairman, CEO and founder of the Veterans

          7  Association of America and the Veterans Development

          8  Initiatives.  The Veterans Association of America

          9  advocates and supports the preferential rights of

         10  veterans.  We currently have over 9,600 plus

         11  veterans that have actually enrolled, and the

         12  organization has seven programs of which were

         13  created and put together through a canvassing and

         14  questionnaire of over 5,000 veterans, which we did

         15  over three years ago, and got back a 96 percentile

         16  of those questionnaires back.

         17                 In response to that, what we're

         18  trying to do is make sure that we add and compile

         19  the programs of which they actually need and, which

         20  we have come up with, that actually exercise a

         21  number of the issues that are currently being

         22  brought forth here today.

         23                 The Veterans Development Initiatives,

         24  which has been incorporated specifically to

         25  renovate, restore and build housing for veterans who
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          2  have been displaced, including their families. How

          3  many times have we come to these meetings, and we've

          4  actually discussed these very issues?  Which is

          5  pretty said because, of course, with the allocation,

          6  of which Mr. Bello and Mr. DeToro had actually

          7  mentioned before me, actually said, you have such a

          8  surplus in monies, why isn't this actually taken on

          9  and put in as a part of this approved budget

         10  process?

         11                 We continue to drag our feet, and it

         12  becomes very cumbersome, tiresome as well.  I have

         13  worked very closely with the late Executive Director

         14  of MOVA, Mr. Michael J. Handy.  My mother was also

         15  employed there for over 25 years, so she has gone

         16  through four mayors at that particular time.  Mr.

         17  Handy, God rest his soul, would always make sure and

         18  contact me, and say, listen, what do you think that

         19  we need to do to actually enhance the readiness of

         20  this office on an outside basis?  Maybe it's

         21  something that I'm not seeing of which we may

         22  actually need to see or view.  Taking on concerns or

         23  assessments to include as suggestions, which I don't

         24  think is really happening.

         25                 I've actually represented Mr. Handy
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          2  at several Fleet Week functions when he was the

          3  Executive Director, and I think that that is

          4  something that I don't see anyone in that office

          5  that is actually calling up and asking those

          6  individuals to at least take part or participate in

          7  some of these events that have actually gone on.  I

          8  have not received a letter from that office in the

          9  last seven years.  I used to get one regularly.  I

         10  haven't received one. My address hasn't changed.  My

         11  phone number has been the same.

         12                 There should be no reason for them to

         13  actually have made a statement of saying that they

         14  had all of these mailings taking place and nothing

         15  actually happened.  I'm just concerned about, which

         16  was mentioned just a second ago as her testimony

         17  stated, the Advisory Board.  The Advisory Board was

         18  supposed to be made up, to my understanding as what

         19  was mentioned by Chairman Monserrate of veterans,

         20  five from the Mayor's office and five that were

         21  supposedly to be picked amongst the Council if I'm

         22  not correct.  Obviously, I did not see that

         23  happening.  What we can do, and what I would suggest

         24  that this Committee do is if you're looking to get

         25  some feedback from her, why don't you request the
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          2  minutes from that meeting that she so called was

          3  held in October. That will actually indicate to you

          4  all the individuals that were there, what was said

          5  in a definitive term and actually what processes in

          6  moving forward have they actually mentioned

          7  throughout that meeting  So that's something that

          8  you may want to actually look into, getting the

          9  minutes from all of those meetings and making sure

         10  that you can get all the individuals.

         11                 I am completely appalled by the

         12  ongoing information of which she continues to rattle

         13  off at us, and it seems that these numbers that

         14  she's just grabbing through osmosis because I don't

         15  see them.  I think I'm very, very good at

         16  mathematical computations but I don't see in any

         17  way, shape or form her actually being able to

         18  service a number of the veterans of which she has

         19  alluded to that actually states, of course, that she

         20  is really doing such a bang up job.  We know of

         21  course that that is not the case.

         22                 It's not to browbash her.  It's just

         23  to browbash more so of the Administration.  We need

         24  more effective communication with both sides and

         25  obviously pushing this resource center.  This will
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          2  let you know, Chairman Monserrate, how serious and

          3  how very important these resource centers are.

          4  There is no way -- I have 100 people within the last

          5  month and a half that have gotten back to me and

          6  requested jobs and housing.  One gentleman that is

          7  unemployed and he's gone to a number of different

          8  agencies, and they have turned him down.  If it's

          9  just going to be a referral agency, well, hell, we

         10  can all refer if that be the case.  So I don't see

         11  those things actually matriculating or taking place

         12  where it becomes suitable to all the veterans within

         13  this City.

         14                 I'll just to make this last point.  I

         15  disagreed with Councilman Fidler.  There is no way.

         16  We have to keep it small first.  It's a local issue

         17  before it becomes a state and a national issue.  Of

         18  course, we do understand that it must be one of

         19  which the dollar value and dollars coming into the

         20  budget are from federal, state and local.  But let's

         21  not talk about any other entity other than the local

         22  because that's what we're here for, speaking

         23  directly about the citizens that live in this state

         24  and this city predominantly.  I think that we're not

         25  doing the essence of what we should be doing to get
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          2  those messages across.  I'd like to thank each and

          3  every one of you for allowing me to speak on behalf

          4  of my organizations, and I'll take any questions

          5  that you may have.

          6                 MS. VANCLIEF:  Hi, I'm Helene

          7  Vanclief.  I'm a veteran advocate, and I work with

          8  many groups, including the Order of the Silver Rose,

          9  Jewish War Veterans, Spinal Association PBA. I have

         10  a spinal injury, and I'm 100 percent disabled vet.

         11  There are a lot of things.

         12                 First of all, there was something on

         13  brain trauma, so you know if you go to the Bronx VA

         14  on the first floor, you can go to the brain -- to

         15  the outpatient clinic for paralyzed veterans, and on

         16  that sign there is a sign that says "Brain Trauma."

         17  If you go up to the second floor where they do the

         18  x- rays, there's a big board and it says they're

         19  running brain trauma classes for all the staff at

         20  the Bronx VA.  I know that because I walk around,

         21  and I look and I read.  Evidently, she's not been to

         22  a VA hospital to know and a lot of times to find

         23  that out.  That's number one.

         24                 Number two, there's a big issue which

         25  I think she should be addressing is voting.  Now
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          2  we're making all these voting machines for the

          3  disabled.  How about the veterans who are in the

          4  nursing home at the Bronx VA and in Queens?  How

          5  about giving them a voter card so they can vote.

          6  Let them vote.  Get machines in there or give them a

          7  paper ballot.  They don't have that right. Also,

          8  Queens has the largest number of veterans, then why

          9  is the Mayor trying to put a school over there

         10  instead of assisted living facilities for our

         11  veterans?  Some veterans need a lot of assistance

         12  and cannot go into a regular apartment and pay rent.

         13  They'll never be able to do that because of their

         14  service.  Well, that doesn't mean that they don't

         15  deserve that right.

         16                 Our women veterans I know are going

         17  to Women in Need in the Bronx.  Well that's great.

         18  I know two of them who are over there.  That's fine,

         19  but what do they know about veterans? Nothing.  So

         20  they're not helping veterans, and they're certainly

         21  not getting the information from the Mayor's Office

         22  because most of our veterans go up there.  They go

         23  all over looking for help and they're not getting

         24  it.  It's really hard they really need to do that,

         25  so I don't understand --
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          2                 I see the move to Gold Street as

          3  excellent. However, I don't see that she knows the

          4  reason she should be there. She should be there to

          5  link up with the other organizations.  If their

          6  Mayor has a major problem in the City, what group

          7  doesn't get invited to that big meeting?  The

          8  veterans.  And guess what, if it's a security

          9  problem, who would you ask?  The veterans because

         10  they know about those things.  When are you gonna

         11  ask about the disabled?  Well, if you have the

         12  disabled there, so should the veterans because

         13  veterans are disabled people, for the most part, and

         14  they know about those things and how to handle those

         15  things, and if there's a problem, they need to be in

         16  those meetings.

         17                 So to put the veterans out there as

         18  we're going to take care of them within the veterans

         19  community is great, but when it comes to using

         20  Access- A- Ride, the large group of people who use

         21  Access- A- Ride are the veterans.  The large group

         22  of disabled people are veterans.

         23                 Therefore, we need to do more.  You

         24  can't outreach the veterans if you don't do anything

         25  for the veterans.  If MOVA has no plan to do it.
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          2  Second thing is, there was one time they wanted to

          3  do something with a helpline for veterans, I said,

          4  why don't they have a 311 and say, okay, you call

          5  311 any veteran who wants to call 311 for help they

          6  call.  Then get somebody who is a veteran advocate

          7  to go speak to them and help them with their

          8  problems.  That's the first thing.

          9                 The second thing, which I don't think

         10  the Federal Government is doing a lot about, is

         11  there was a stolen computer. Well, you know about

         12  one.  I know of three in New York State.  That

         13  should have been something that she should have said

         14  she took care of, the one in Manhattan.  The one in

         15  the Dermatology Department at Manhattan VA was

         16  stolen, that affects the City veterans over here,

         17  and I guess everybody has their address but her.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you

         19  very much. Council Member Gentile.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Thank you,

         21  Mr. Chairman, and it's just shocking to hear

         22  veterans and their experiences with MOVA.  The fact

         23  that there is no traditional press here is also

         24  shocking to me and I think to my colleagues here

         25  that the press are not covering our Committee
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          2  Hearing.

          3                 I'm just curious because I knew Mr.

          4  Handy personally and certainly working with him over

          5  the years, I'm curious how that operation was

          6  different than the operation today?  Was MOVA more

          7  than just a referral agency when it was headed by

          8  Mr. Handy?

          9                 DR. WORKS:  Yes, it was.  Because

         10  what he did was actually institute and tried to

         11  bring a number of other organizations.  He would

         12  literally go out into the field, and I would

         13  actually be with him on some of those occasions

         14  where he would try to definitely link up, physically

         15  be there to actually link up individuals to those

         16  corresponding organizations of which they can

         17  actually receive the levels of outreach.

         18                 As I've mentioned, actually assisting

         19  him in his Fleet Week activities and representing

         20  him, I've went to a number of areas in which I had

         21  to actually explain what it is that they did and

         22  what services were being rendered.  Not only that, I

         23  received an e- mail or a letter from him at least

         24  every one to three months at least letting you know

         25  an update of what services were being found, what
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          2  things were actually being instituted.  I would get

          3  back to him and actually provide him additional

          4  suggestions of what he could do to actually enhance

          5  and/or expand some of those areas of which he was

          6  currently working on.  So, yes, it is vastly

          7  different from this particular Administration or

          8  that particular office now as it was opposed to

          9  then.  Like I said, my mother worked there for 25

         10  years, so that was also inclusive of that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  So the

         12  Mayor's Office of Veterans' Affairs can be an

         13  effective partner in working with veterans across

         14  the City?

         15                 DR. WORKS:  It can.  But obviously

         16  but under this particular Administration and its

         17  office, it has not been.  It's been far from that as

         18  being an effective office.  It could and it was in

         19  the past.  It could and it was, and they tried to do

         20  as best they could to actually reach out to those

         21  individuals, and because they still had the limited

         22  staff, he would go above and beyond in trying to

         23  make sure that he reached out to as many different

         24  organizations as he could.  As I've mentioned, I was

         25  with him on a number of those organizations and
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          2  trips that he's taken.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  I don't

          4  know, Mr. Chairman of anyone from the actual office

          5  of MOVA still remains here.  I know we have a member

          6  of the Mayor's office here, and I think the message

          7  that's getting across here is that vision, that

          8  mission has been lost among those who now are

          9  responsible for the Mayor's Office of Veterans'

         10  Affairs.  I mean, that's what we're hearing here at

         11  this Committee.  I think if nothing else, maybe that

         12  message needs to go back to the man at the top, our

         13  Mayor, as to what veterans are saying about the

         14  service they're getting from the City

         15  Administration.  Thank you.  Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chairman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Indulge

         18  this.  You're going to be the last speaker.  We're

         19  going to be closing.

         20                 MR. DETORO:  I'm back here to say

         21  that the Mayor's is our chief --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Give your

         23  name for the record.

         24                 MR. DETORO:  My name if Ralph Detoro.

         25    I'm with the Disabled Veteran Vendors.  The Mayor
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          2  is our head of staff.  I would presume that he meets

          3  with business leaders personally and goes to

          4  meetings with them and sits down and hears their

          5  discussions about the City and what their needs are.

          6    I think we as veterans deserve a day with the

          7  Mayor where the Mayor stands up in front of us and

          8  listens to our needs.  Because I feel before what's

          9  said here, by the time it gets back to the Mayor,

         10  it's all watered down, with all due respect.  It's

         11  all watered down.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  I don't know

         13  if I would call it watered down.  I think he

         14  probably would give him the "G" rated version.

         15                 MR. DETORO:  The "G" rated -- All

         16  right, I agree with you.  So I think it's incumbent

         17  upon the Mayor to give his veterans a day where he

         18  says, I will meet with you as a gentleman, as your

         19  Mayor, and to show my appreciation and to listen to

         20  your concerns.  And I'd like to put that in front of

         21  you guys and, hopefully, because the only way I

         22  think it could be done is through this Committee.  I

         23  think the veterans deserve it.  Thank you for the

         24  time.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:  Thank you.
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          2  With that, we're going to be calling a close to this

          3  Hearing.  Thank you to all involved.  Thank you.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 3:15 p.m.)
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